Atta Mohammad ‘The Witness’ Passes Away


Atta Mohammad of Bemyar, Chalan Uri died on January 10 after a prolonged illness. During our research on the issue of “Mass Graves” after the 2005 earthquake, Atta Mohammad met with the editor during the editor's second visit to the Chahal graveyard where 235 unidentified dead bodies were buried. After our first report titled “The Facts Underground” was released in 2008 there was a lot of pressure on the Atta Mohammad from the police and different intelligence agencies. During a press conference, the APDP took a video recording of Atta Mohammad's statement as a precaution so that he should not retract his statement, and thereby, discrediting the report. “Buried Evidence” followed the “Facts Underground” report. The twin reports on Mass graves in Kashmir caused a huge sensation in the media. It was for the first time that the connection between the enforced disappearances and the mass graves was made as earlier the focus was only the phenomenon of enforced disappearances. There was a beeline for journalists, human right activists, researchers and even political activists to Chahal in Uri to meet with Atta Mohammad. Atta Mohammad was much sought after with this group of people, almost becoming a celebrity. The gravedigger due to his poverty wanted help from the people who went on meeting him.  The APDP/JKCCS on several occasions helped Atta Mohammad, which he deserved, and one anthropologist from the USA was really moved by the pathetic condition of Atta Mohammad and has been frequently helping him. This gravedigger was not supported from any quarter and had shared his mental state and how he is still having nightmares in which he sees the blood ridden bodies of young people most of their faces disfigured and most of the bodies dismembered and how these bodies still haunt him in the dreams. 

Atta Mohammad was a small farmer in the area. He was partly compelled to bury the dead bodies and partly he was also convinced that it was his religious duty to give a decent burial to the dead bodies brought at evening and midnights by the army and police for the burial. The army and the police want to get rid of the bodies but it was Atta Mohammad who ensured that the bodies buried should not be eaten or desecrated by the dogs and wild animals. He was convinced that most of the dead bodies were of the civilian or non-militants. Whenever he would visit Srinagar for treatment as he was suffering from a respiratory problem JKCCS would support him but his health rapidly deteriorated and he was admitted to Chest Diseases Hospital in Srinagar where after some time he was discharged and shortly afterwards he expired at his home at Chahal. 

The mass graves are widely spread in the J&K and many people have equally done the job of burying the dead bodies killed by the army or SOG but most of them have chosen to remain anonymous because of fear they didn’t come to the public to state the facts. One gravedigger in Kupwara who had kept the record of the graves in the area was several times approached by the APDP for access to the records he kept. But each time he refused to meet us. Atta Mohammad was the exception. Proud of being a Rajput Muslim he stood by his word that he had made to JKCCS or the media and despite being harassed from the local administration to avoid meeting the media and to making statements he didn’t stop telling the truth about the mass graves in Kashmir. 

A few months ago, when he visited our office he scolded us for not managing the fencing of the graveyards without knowing our limited means and also the legal implications. Atta Mohammad was an unsung hero but known in the media. After his death except for few political activists nobody from Hurriyat visited his home and even there was no statement from the resistance camp. True to our tradition as ungrateful people Atta Mohammad was denied what was due for him but whenever the issue of disappearances and mass graves will be investigated and justice to the victims will be given the contribution of Atta Mohammad cannot be ignored. Atta Mohammad's death will be remembered by the APDP and JKCCS and we have to give him his due place in the history of resistance in Kashmir. 


 DISAPPEARED BARBER’S CORPSE FOUND 

The Informative Missive 	15 	January 2016

Jan 17: Exactly after fourteen days of his disappearance corpse of Ghulam Mohammad Hajam, 55, was found abandoned in a field at Katipora, Awantipora in south Kashmir. Ghulam Mohammad, a barber, son of Ghulam Qadir of Tengpuna, Pulwama disappeared on January 3, his family alleged, after being taken into custody by the JK police. 
	On January 3, Ghulam Mohammad disappeared while the protesting youth were chased away by police. His presence, that day, at his shop was confirmed to his family by a neighbouring shopkeeper. 
	Hajam’s family besides filing missing report also approached Association of Parents of Disappeared Persons (APDP) for highlighting the case. 
	Hajam’s wife while talking to The Informative Missive said, “On January 3, my husband reached his barber shop from his sister’s house at Awaitipora after staying for a night over there. When he didn’t turn up in the evening, we contacted his neighbouring shopkeeper who confirmed that he was on the shop. He disappeared when police chased away a group of boys protesting in favour of monument to be raised in memory of the killed persons in state action.”
Next day, the family approached the police and filed a missing report. While searching for him, Hajam’s wife said, “A reliable source informed us that my husband was taken to Pulwama Police Line along with some other boys. When we approached the police for his release, the arrest was denied. The police said they have arrested some boys and released them after short while and the arrest of my husband was not acknowledged.”
The police denial worried the family and before it could explore ways to campaign for his release his body was found. 
Hajam is survived by his wife and four children. He was the lone bread earner for his family.
Herein below is the complete text of the press statement issued by APDP regarding disappearance of Hajam. 
The Association of Parents of Disappeared Persons (APDP) is concerned over the alleged disappearance of the youth in the valley. On January 03, 2016, a Barber from Pulwama district disappeared and the family alleged that he was arrested by the police, who later denied his arrest. Since November 2015 Hajam’s disappearance has been registered as the fourth case of enforced disappearance in valley. The disappearance of three Kupwara persons who were lured by a TA man on November 17 last year is still a mystery and there is no headway in the case.
While the agitation for erection of memorial, in memory of slain militants / civilians killed in police action was going on, on January 3, 2016, a Barber Ghulam Mohammad Hajjam son of Ghulam Qadir Hajam of Tengpuna, Pulwama disappeared from his shop. One of Hajjam’s neighbouring shopkeepers, a baker, told the family that he had seen Hajjam in the morning of January 3 working in his shop. Thereafter, his family received information from some reliable source that Hajjam was taken to Police Line Pulwama. On contacting the police, the family was told that few boys were taken into custody and later released.  The detention of Hajjam was vehemently denied by the police. 
The family told the APDP that they have sufficient leads that Hajjam was in police custody. Basing its claim on the family statement, APDP is urging the government and police department to ensure the safe release of the detained barber at the earliest. 
There was considerable decline in cases of enforced disappearances from last few years; however, time and again cases of enforced disappearance are surfacing.  
It is also disturbing that police are burying “unidentified / foreign militants” killed in alleged ‘encounters’ at far off places like Trikanjan, Uri in north Kashmir where already thousands of mass graves have been reported by the APDP in past. There are reports from the local people in Trikanjan that even during burial of these bodies the proper procedure was not followed. 

GRAVEDIGGER – WITNESS, ATTA MOHAMMAD DEAD

Jan 11: Atta Mohammad, 75, of Bimyar, Chahal, Uri died on January 10 night after prolonged ailment. Atta Mohammad is one such brave Kashmiri who despite an atmosphere of militarization and repression, continued to speak truth. In the last 25 years of violent repression, Atta Mohammad in his village received 235 unidentified bullet ridden dead bodies, most of whom the armed forces claimed were militants killed in encounters. This included the dead body of a six-month old baby girl.
According to Atta Mohammad, he felt the forces that killed these unidentified persons, would not have paid respect to the dead; therefore he chose to give them a proper burial. On some occasions, he and the local community members would retain some belonging of the dead, which helped in identification, when their families came looking for them.
So far Association of Parents of Disappeared Persons (APDP) and Jammu Kashmir Coalition of Civil Society (JKCCS) through sustained research work, have been able to document the existence of 7000 unmarked graves in Baramulla, Kupwara, Bandipora, Poonch and Rajouri districts of Jammu and Kashmir. The government has no records to prove the identity of these unidentified persons.
	There are many places where local gravediggers have been involved in burying the unidentified dead persons after the dead bodies were hand over to them by the army or Police. Atta Mohammad is amongst very few people who came out in the open to testify as the witness. He was perhaps the only gravedigger who did not mind being identified by his name publicly despite being intimidated by the Police. He was very keen that his testimony should have been used by the government for conducting a credible investigation into the phenomenon of unmarked graves in Jammu and Kashmir.
	APDP pays rich tribute to this courageous man, who lived his life in abject poverty and did not compromise on speaking the truth.

ENFORCED DISAPPEARANCE 
IN ARMY RAID CARPENTER ARRESTED IN 1999, ARREST DENIED 
CAN’T PRESUME HIM DEAD, AS NOT SEEN HIS CORPSE

Way back in 1999, an aged carpenter Ghulam Rasool of Bandipora was arrested by army’s 14 RR in a raid, to search the house, and subsequently denied his arrest, when contacted by the family to free the arrestee. There was no clue of the man’s fate. Even the family can’t presume the disappeared dead as they have not seen his corpse.  
Ghulam Mohi-ud-din son of Ghulam Rasool made a detailed statement to The Informative Missive about how his father was arrested and his custody was denied. He also narrated the continuous harassment the family faced even after the killing of its member, a militant, in an encounter.  
On December 30, 1999, army’s 14 Rashtriya Rifles (RR) from Chitternag conducted a raid on the house of Ghulam Rasool Najar s/o: Muhammad Khalil Najar of Mangnipora, Bandipora to conduct searches. Army came in two trucks including Shaktiman, a combat truck. It was around 8:45 pm and there was dark and cold outside. 
An army contingent entered the house in one go and instructed the inmates except Ghulam Rasool Najar, keeping in view his old age and frailty, to go upstairs. They all were huddled in a single room with two soldiers standing at the door to keep vigil on them. The raid was conducted in connection of their slain brother Ghulam Hassan’s involvement with militancy. Even though he was killed on October 10, 1997, in an encounter at Keema, Bandipora, the army maintained surveillance on their house.  
	After failing to find anything incriminating, the soldiers took along Ghulam Rasool. It was then he was last seen by his family. Prior to a week before the army raid, a band of Ikhwanis (renegades) had a scuffle with the family when they (Ikhwanis) tried to enter the house. These Ikhawanis, one of them identified as Aziz Gujjar of Koulmuqam, Hapeat Naar, Bandipora, were forced to leave the place. Aziz Gujjar was working with Usman Majeed, a top Ikhwani-turned-Congress leader.  These Ikhwanis were accusing the family of supporting the militants by means of food and shelter. The army raid was planned after its extension failed to enter the house. 
On the next day, when the family approached police station Bandipora to report Rasool’s arrest, however, police didn’t entertain the complaint. Few hours later, the family approached the 14 RR camp, and to the family’s shock the arrest was denied. To continue with the search, the family also visited to Watlab Army headquarters and Chitter Nar Camp but the response was same, arrest denied. 
	After two months, the family approached State Human Rights Commission (SHRC) and filed a complaint of disappearance there. FIR was filed only when SHRC asked the police to do so that too after two years.  
In 2002, army’s 22 RR from Sopore raided the house again. They ransacked and searched the house. Ghulam Mohi-ud-din, Rasool’s son was taken near to an army vehicle parked outside his house. Mohi-ud-din was presented before some masked person, sitting inside the vehicle, most probably for identification. He was released immediately.
Again, after two days, the same army unit came for another search. Frustrated by not finding anything adverse against the family, they dug the floor of the house. On leaving they threatened the family of visiting again at night even mentioned the time at 200 am. 
To avert continuous harassment Ghulam Mohi-ud-din approached the SHO concerned and complaint against the army raids and threats. A police team reached the house and after searching it called the army. The army arrived and searched the house and finding nothing objectionable, apologized to the family and assured of no future harassment and raids. Since then the family is feeling relaxed. However, the question that keeps haunting the family is what had happened to Ghulam Rasool after being taken away by the army. 
A case was filed in Rasool’s disappearance in SHRC. The SHRC recommended Rs. 5 lack as compensation which was later received by the family in different installments. 


REMEMBERING MUFTI SAYED, LET TRUTH PREVAIL

Jan 09: While the local newspapers were occupied with eulogizing write ups about the late Chief Minister Mufti Mohammad Sayed, who died on January 7 in a Delhi hospital, the JKCCS took it an opportunity to dig into the performance of departed, in office, Chief Minister on human rights front as an Indian Home Minister and two time Chief Minister of Jammu and Kashmir.  Herein below is abridged statement: 
 	Mufti Mohammad Sayed’s death is being conducted by the government exactly the way he himself conducted his politics in Jammu and Kashmir, which was full of lies, opportunism and rhetoric. Since the creation of People’s Democratic Party (PDP), Mufti Sayed and his party workers have been carrying forward the rhetoric of peace with dignity, battle of ideas, healing touch, accountability etc. All these slogans in practicality turned out to be mere loud political propaganda to counter the peoples’ narrative.
As a human rights organization, we will restrict ourselves to presenting the facts related to the conduct and responsibility of Mufti Sayed for the human rights atrocities, which took place when he was in authority, as the Home Minister of India from 2nd December 1989 to 10 November 1990 and as the Chief Minister of Jammu and Kashmir from 2nd November 2002 to 2nd November 2005 and 1st March 2015 to 6th January 2016.
During his tenure as the Home Minister of India, the armed rebellion against the Indian occupation in Jammu and Kashmir had just begun. On 8th December 1989, his daughter Rubaiya Sayed was kidnapped by Jammu Kashmir Liberation Front and later released in the exchange of 5 prisoners. When the situation was out of the control for the Indian State in Jammu and Kashmir, Government of India dismissed the Farooq Abdullah government on 19th January and on the same day Jagmohan, the infamous right wing Governor was brought to Jammu and Kashmir. It is being reported that Mufti Mohammad Sayed was instrumental in appointing Jagmohan as the Governor for Jammu and Kashmir. Jagmohan was executing the iron fist policy of Indian Government for his tenure from 19th January 1990 to 26th May 1990. Ofcourse Governor Jagmohan is remembered as the killer in Kashmir, but can we ignore the role of the person who as the Indian Home Minister was controlling the actions of Indian armed forces particularly the paramilitary forces like Border Security Force, Central Reserve Police Force etc. who were primarily involved in the large-scale violence and atrocities on the people of Jammu and Kashmir then. In Jammu and Kashmir during the tenure of Mufti Mohammad Sayed as the Home Minister of India following massacres took place:
Gow Kadal massacre 21st January 1990, Alamgiri Bazaar massacre 22nd January 1990, Handwara massacre 25th January 1990, Zakura Crossing massacre 1st March 1990, Byepass Massacre 1st March 1990 
Hawal Massacre 21st May 1990 and Mashaali Mohalla 6th August 1990 
 Besides the above massacres, the highest number of civilian killings by the Indian armed forces in the last 25 years took place in the year 1990. Killings, rapes and molestations, torture, and collective punishments through crackdowns and prolonged curfews created an atmosphere of war. Any person, who has lived the year of 1990 in the valley of Kashmir, is witness to the fact that it was the most dreadful period in terms of the violence perpetrated by the Indian State. It was during Mufti Sayed’s tenure as Indian Home Minister, that the draconian Armed Forces (Special Powers) Act (AFSPA) was invoked in Jammu and Kashmir in September 1990.
 It is during the same period a huge section of the Kashmiri Pandit community migrated outside of Kashmir valley. Besides ofcourse the killings and fear, people are witness to how instead of addressing the fears of Kashmiri Pandits, the Government was facilitating their migration, which was immediately used by India to give communal colour to the struggle of Kashmiri people. It is pertinent to mention here, that even in the past in 1986 at Wanpoh and adjoining villages in South Kashmir, there was an anti Hindu riot, in which few temples were burnt and according to the allegations of Kashmiri Pandits Mufti Mohammad Sayed was the main instigator.
Then in his new avatar as the Chief Minister of Jammu and Kashmir from 2nd November 2002 to 2nd November 2005, through his hyper peace rhetoric, he tried his best to obfuscate the truth about the human rights atrocities of Jammu and Kashmir. During his three-year rule, atleast 6837 people were killed and out of whom 1784 were civilians, 3898 were militants and 1155 were armed forces personnel. In the same period around 176 cases of enforced disappearances and 127 custodial killings were reported. During this period Mufti Sayed led government for curbing the civilian protests on the one hand arrested hundreds of political workers to choke the dissent and on the other hand to pacify the public anger announced 77 inquiries, none of which led to prosecution of armed forces personnel involved in the heinous crimes. These probes instead of actual prosecution resulted in the cover-ups.
During his tenure as the Chief Minister, on April 2003 when the families of the disappeared were on 7 day hunger strike, Atal Bihari Vajpayee, in the presence of Mufti Mohammad Sayed was questioned by the media about the hunger strike of the families of the disappeared; Mufti Sayed rescued Indian Prime Minister by answering the question, with utter lies. While dismissing the appeal of the families of the disappeared for holding a probe into all the cases of enforced disappearances, he claimed that only 50-60 people have disappeared in Jammu and Kashmir, which was contradictory to what he himself had stated in the Jammu and Kashmir Legislative Assembly on 25th February 2003 wherein he had said that 3744 persons have disappeared in Jammu and Kashmir.
In his recent tenure as the Chief Minister of Jammu and Kashmir from 1st March 2015 to 6th January 2016 a total of 192 people have been killed, amongst whom 50 are civilians, 90 are militants and 52 are armed forces personnel. During this last 10-month rule of Mufti Sayed, seven probes have been appointed for probing human rights violations, as usual none has resulted into prosecution.
According to the international principle of command responsibility, Mufti Mohammad Sayed, while in power as the Indian Home Minister and as the Chief Minister is responsible for the crimes, which were perpetrated under his command. If an international process of justice is commissioned in Jammu and Kashmir for probing the responsibility of all those who were directly or through chain of command responsible for perpetrating innumerable atrocities on people of Jammu and Kashmir, Mufti Sayed, no doubt is one such culpable person who should have been prosecuted. The systematic and institutional impunity in Jammu and Kashmir has allowed him to evade actual prosecution but in the understanding of the people of Jammu and Kashmir, Mufti Sayed is morally indicted.

UN LED REFERENDUM IN GILGIT BALTISTAN

Jan 15: The newspaper reportage about the possible Pakistani Government’s decision to ‘legally’ integrate Gilgit – Baltistan region into Pakistan, which otherwise is part of the disputed territory of the erstwhile region of Jammu and Kashmir, is worrisome.
All the regions of Jammu and Kashmir, whether the Indian administered part or the Pakistan administered part, are a disputed territory and at the same time an issue of denial of the right to self-determination of the people of Jammu and Kashmir. Jammu Kashmir Coalition of Civil Society (JKCCS) principally believes that neither India nor Pakistan can usurp the right of self-determination of the people of Jammu and Kashmir. Any solution to entire Jammu and Kashmir or any particular region of Jammu and Kashmir cannot be undertaken while disregarding the fundamental civil and political rights of the people.
It is being claimed that the people of Gilgit Baltistan feel trapped in the larger uncertainty of Jammu and Kashmir. Further, that the people of Gilgit Baltistan are aspiring for democratization and development in their region and perhaps do not want to wait endlessly for India and Pakistan to resolve the overall dispute on Jammu and Kashmir. While acknowledging the denial of basic rights of people of Jammu and Kashmir in all regions, JKCCS would like to call upon the Pakistani government to uphold its own commitment to the people of Jammu and Kashmir and unambiguously be guided in its actions in Gilgit Batistan by the framework of International law and the UN Security Council resolutions on Jammu and Kashmir.
Pakistan, has been claiming that it is Indian government’s obstinacy that the referendum under the UN resolutions has not been held so far in entire Jammu and Kashmir, therefore at this stage when it is being claimed that Gilgit Baltistan people want to end the uncertainty about their legal status within Pakistan, JKCCS believes there is no better way, than to refer the matter to the UN and the International institutions like OIC and EU for initiating a regional referendum in Gilgit Baltistan. Let the voices of the people of Gilgit Baltistan be heard through a credible democratic process and if that leads to integration with Pakistan or autonomous status within Azad Jammu and Kashmir, that should be acceptable to all stakeholders.
Any imposed decision on Gilgit Baltistan will primarily be unjust to the people living there and also will further embolden Indian position in its controlled areas. India has already forcibly through fraudulent processes tried to provide legal cover to their military occupation of Jammu and Kashmir, and now if Pakistan imposes any forced integration of Gilgit Baltistan, it will unfortunately be following the footsteps of India and will further legitimize India’s subjugation of Jammu and Kashmir. UN, OIC and EU led regional referendum in Gilgit Baltistan will empower the people of that region and also at the same time pressurize India to carry out referendum in Indian administered Jammu and Kashmir.
At this crucial juncture of history, Pakistan must be guided by the confidence of democratic principles envisaged in the article 1 of ICCPR, that is right to self-determination and shun any insecurity. A credible international referendum in Gilgit – Baltistan will reflect Pakistan’s commitment to self-determination of the people of Jammu and Kashmir and will become a decisive breakthrough in pushing the Indian government to hold a similar UN led referendum in Jammu and Kashmir.



KUPWARA TRIO’S DISAPPEARANCE
WE ARE ADVISED TO LIE LOW: FAMILIES

Jan 19: The family members of three missing persons from border district Kupwara while blaming the police for its failure to trace Ghulam Jeelani Khatana, Mir Hussain Khatana and Ali Muhammad Sheikh of Dardpora Kralgund, disappeared on November 17 last year said they are receiving the advices not to raise the issue any more, as it could endanger the lives of disappeared. 
While talking to The Informative Missive Khursheed Ahmad the relative Ghulam Jeelani said, “Police is not doing much to trace out the disappeared. We don’t understand why police is not doing what is required from it. The manner in which police is perusing the case only made us doubtful about its role in finding the disappeared people.”
“We feel frustrated. We don’t know what to do. The continuous disappearance of the trio is haunting and paining the families. We don’t know whom to believe and what to do,” said young Khursheed who often talked to media on the developments of the triple disappearance case.  
He further stated, “Some people advised us to lie low, as further campaign to highlight the case could endanger the lives of the disappeared. So we have decided to keep silence for a while and wait what will happen”.   
“We are in dilemma. We have our own doubts about keeping silence over the issue; it may unwittingly help the perpetrators. But we have no option but to do this experiment for a while hoping that something favourable may happen,” said Manzoor while expressing the helplessness of the families.
SSP Kupwara Ajaz Ahmed told media that there is no breakthrough the case. “The investigation is going on and we are on it,” he said.

SOPORE MASSACRE: NO JUSTICE AS LEGAL PROCEEDINGS SUSPENDED
23RD ANNIVERSARY OF SOPORE MASSACRE – 6 JANUARY 1993

Jan 05: Twenty-three-years after the Sopore massacre on 6 January 1993, the legal proceedings stand suspended as there exists no will to allow processes of justice to proceed despite overwhelming evidence indicting personnel of the BSF. On 6 January 1993, personnel of the 94th Battalion, BSF carried out an attack in Sopore town that led to the killing of more than 50 civilians, scores of injured, and destruction of more than 500 shops and 20-25 houses. The Sopore chowk area was burnt down including the roadside areas of: Shahabad, Bobimir Sahab, Muslim Peer, Shallapora and Kralteng. Further, Samad Talkies, and the women’s college located near the Sopore chowk were also burnt.
The CBI took more than 20 years to investigate the case, only to seek closure of investigations on 4 December 2013. The case was listed before the TADA court. On 28 June 2014 the survivors of the massacre filed a protest petition against the closure report filed by the CBI. The protest petition – seeking further investigations in the case – was a contestation of the States lies and attempts to cover up the massacre. Following numerous delays, often due to the non-appearance of the CBI, the matter now stands completely suspended following the replacement of the earlier TADA court judge in July 2015. As of the last date of hearing, the new judge has yet to be formally assigned the powers to proceed with matters before him. 
Therefore, 23 years after the massacre, the entire investigation record is now finally before a court. But, the judge has yet to be formally empowered to deal with the case. Separately, the CBI has repeatedly sought to delay proceedings and has taken the position, contrary to law, that the survivors do not have any right to access court documents or participate in the proceedings before the court.
The proceedings in the Sopore case once again remind us that there exists no will to provide justice in Jammu and Kashmir for crimes committed by State forces. Government of Jammu and Kashmir, Government of India and various functionaries, such as the CBI, collude to delay proceedings, obfuscate the truth, frustrate survivors and victim families and ensure impunity.
Yet, the survivors continue to struggle and remember.

POLICE CHARGESHEET IN KUPWARA MASSACRE AWAITS NOD FROM TOP BRASS

Jan 31: Twenty-two years after a group of soldiers massacred 27 civilians, on 27 January 1994, in Kupwara town, the police are awaiting the approval of higher officials for the chargesheet they have completed against the accused soldiers and which they plan to file before a court. 
 Led by Major S Bakshi, the soldiers had fired indiscriminately at people in the town. The survivors of the massacre have said the army avenged the defiance of the townspeople who had been ordered by the Major that they should keep their shops open on India’s Republic Day on January 26 and attend a local army camp for celebrations.
 Not only did people observe a complete strike, like the rest of the Valley, they also did not attend army celebrations.
 The police had then filed a case of murder and attempt to murder. At the time, scores of survivors had submitted written complaints against the killers. However, the police never seriously pursued the case against the army.
 This time, however, a police official told media that they have attached a report of the CID which says the army had fired at the civilians without any provocation and ruled out presence of militants at the time of the massacre.
 However, the CID report says only 18 civilians were killed on the day.

PULWAMA MARTYRS’ MEMORIAL REFUSED, STAND-OFF ENDS
INSTRUCTIONS FROM GOVERNOR’S HOUSE TO NOT ALLOW MEMORIAL AT ANY COST: OFFICIALS; CLASHES IN OLD SRINAGAR

Jan 15: The 16-day impasse over the construction of a martyrs’ memorial in Pulwama has apparently ended after the government refused the demand of erecting a memorial hoarding, which it had agreed to earlier. District Trade President Bashir Ahmad told media that the administration did not agree to install the memorial, but said that it would release all the youths who were detained during the agitation.
A source in the district administration told media they had received instructions from the governor’s house not to allow locals to erect the memorial at ‘any cost’.  
The standoff started when residents of Chatpora, a village in the main town, commissioned a hoarding glorifying militants killed by Indian forces in recent times to be installed in the Martyrs’ Graveyard situated near the town’s busiest square. It resulted in a deadlock between authorities and youths and a 16 day shutdown enforced in many areas of the district.
The district administration had engaged locals in many meetings, but the impasse continued with the youth not relenting on their demand and the authorities refusing to allow the memorial.
However on Wednesday, the government had agreed to the demand but backed off from the promise made to the traders’ body.
On January 15, Friday, afternoon traders and civil society members met officials of the district administration in which the decision to call off the strike was agreed upon.
In response to the rejection of the demand for a memorial, locals had thrice altered plans for the memorial. A local youth said that the first one had images of martyrs, verses of the Quran with rifles on both sides. After the administration refused, he said, they kept only the names of the martyrs but the administration refused again.
“We then kept only the verses from the Quran, a couplet by Iqbal and the name of the graveyard; but the administration refused again,” he added.
Meanwhile, Kashmir Traders Manufacturing Federation (KTMF) President Haji Muhammad Yasin Khan in a statement appreciated the role of Pulwama residents, particularly traders who showed ‘exemplary commitment towards the cause’.
Eyewitness told media that a youth received a grievous injury on his hand from a stun grenade that was fired by the police. According to witnesses, soon after Friday prayers people staged massive protests. However, the police tried to disperse the protestors, who started pelting stones on the police and paramilitary forces. The police resorted to heavy tear gas shelling, locals said.
The protesters also raised anti-India slogans. Locals said the police detained many youths after the protest, a claim the police denied.

CUSTODIAL KILLING CASE: CBK SEEKS SANCTION FOR PROSECUTION AGAINST 2 ARMY OFFICERS

Jan 28: Crime Branch Kashmir (CBK) has approached Government of India for sanction of prosecution against two Army officers for their involvement in custodial killing of a civilian in Ganderbal in 1999. 
Crime branch has also presented chargesheet against a renegade Ikhwani commander as the prime accused in the case. In a status report filled before the high court, the crime branch said they have forwarded the relevant records, which prove involvement of the said army officers, to State Crime Branch headquarters Jammu. 
Major Suny Kurain (Now Colonel) and Major MR Nunia (then officiating adjutant 5RR) who were posted in Daderhama Ganderbal in 1999 were accused of killing Mohammad Sultan Bhat of Ganderbal in custody.
The CBK said the prime accused in the case Ghulam Mohammad Sheikh alias Muma Ikhwani has been presented before Chief Judicial Magistrate Ganderbal and split chargesheet has also been presented against him.
CBK informed the court that state Crime Branch Headquarters after scrutiny of the records has submitted the same to DG Police vide letter CHQ/FIR 168/99/Gbl. Who approaches GoI for sanction of prosecution.
The investigating team said they are waiting for the sanction and after getting it from GoI, they will file split charge sheet before the court against the army officers.
Earlier, the Investigating Officer of Crime Branch had informed the high court that he had received a communication from Army confirming that Major Adjutant M R Nunia and Major Sunny Kurian shot dead Bhat in 1999.
A Crime Branch probe report had earlier named Major Adjutant S Sehgal, Lance Naik Vikram Singh and Vinod Kumar of 5 Rashtriya Rifles as the main accused in the case. The report had also indicted Sheikh who it said was physically guiding and instructing 5 RR in Ganderbal.
Bhat was picked up during the intervening night of September 19 and 20, 1999 by Army’s unit of 5 RR stationed at Ganderbal from his residence with Sheikh guiding them to Bhat’s house.
Begum Khatija of Batvina Ganderbal had filed a petition in high court seeking reinvestigation into the case of kidnapping and custodial killing of her son Sultan Bhat.

FATHER SAYS JK YOUTH NABBED FOR ALLEGED ISIS LINK ‘INNOCENT’

Jan 31: A day after three alleged ISIS sympathizers were remanded in 10 days’ NIA custody, the father of an arrested Kashmiri youth claimed that his son was “innocent” and had gone abroad for a job to support his family.
“I am a poor man and have debt on me. My son went abroad to relieve us of the debt. He is innocent and has no connection with them (ISIS),” Abdul Sattar Sheikh, the father of Sheikh Azhar-ul-Islam, said.
 Azhar, hailing from central Kashmir’s Ganderbal district, was one of the three youths, who were arrested on Friday for purportedly being on a mission to carry out attacks in India and some other countries.
 The trio were deported from the UAE and they were detained by NIA upon their arrival at the IGI airport.
 Adnan Hussain from Karnataka and Mohammad Farhan from Maharashtra are the other two youths.
 Azhar’s father said the allegations leveled against his son were untrue as he had nothing to do with ISIS.
“He is not involved in it. Check our family history. No one among us has ever taken the path of violence. People in our area will vouch for him. What do we have to do with them (ISIS)?” he questioned.
 Sheikh said his son is being “framed” and appealed the government for his release. The youths were produced before a Delhi court, which remanded them in 10 days’ NIA custody on January 30.

WE NEVER GAVE CLEAN CHIT TO OUR MEN, SAYS CRPF (ascertain the case)

Jan 5: Refuting the media reports, paramilitary CRPF said it didn’t give a clean chit to its personnel and that the judicial enquiry ordered into the case will “definitely bring about the actual cause behind the death of the deceased”.
“We have not issued any such press release/ statement in this matter which appears similar to what is being published in the article,” a CRPF spokesperson reportedly said in a statement. “We believe the statement appears to be the result of misinterpretation. We never give clean chit to our men.”
Stating that the investigation is solely a judicial matter, the spokesperson said, “We anticipate the truthful outcome of this enquiry and will obey the outcome of judicial report with respect and regards.”
“Moreover, being the true peacekeeper and the most trusted, people friendly & responsible force of the Union, we extend our full cooperation in Judicial Enquiry to support the proceeding.”
Worthwhile to mention here, CRPF personnel has killed a youth Gowhar son of Nazir Ahmad of Zainakote, Srinagar in November 2015. 


POLICE CLAIM ARREST OF MILITANT ‘WHO KILLED’ SOPORE FATHER-SON DUO

Dec 5: The police have said that they have arrested a militant responsible for killing a former militant and his three-year-old son in Sopore in September last year.
Bashir Ahmad Bhat son of Ghulam Mohammad and his three-year-old son Burhan were shot dead by an unidentified gunman outside their home in Sagipora village of Sopore. The attackers had first lobbed a grenade toward Bashir, which didn’t explode. The child had two bullet wounds.
Sopore superintendent of police Abdul Qayoom said the arrested militant is Towheed Bashir Mir, a resident of Mir Mohalla of Younsoo.
Qayoom said a militant, Tahir Ahmad Malla, also a resident of Younsoo, who had been arrested in September last year had told police during interrogation that he was accompanying Towheed who actually fired at the father-son duo.
“On January 3 we came to know from our sources that Towheed Bashir was trying to move from Sopore towards Handwara in the evening. We immediately put our security forces along with army on job to apprehend the accused (main shooter) and we were successful in apprehending him from a bus stop in Zaloora,” he added.
Bashir was among several persons killed last year by unidentified gunmen in Sopore, a phenomenon ascribed to internal rivalry in Hizb ranks.

KASHMIRIS ASSAULTED IN INDIAN STATES
· 
· KASHMIRI DOCTOR, SCRIBE ASSAULTED
Jan 09: Two men were arrested and later released on bail by a local court for allegedly attacking a doctor and a journalist, both Kashmiris, in South Delhi’s Bhogal area.
Police said Imran Shah, a freelance journalist, and his friend Ammar Khan, a doctor who works at the Bhagwan Mahavir Hospital, were assaulted by five men at about 10 pm Saturday when they were on their way to a relative’s house in Bhogal.
The attackers also allegedly let loose their pet dogs on the duo and accused them of being ISIS terrorists and drug peddlers.
“We were walking towards my sister’s home for dinner. Five men spotted us and let loose their dogs even though we had done nothing to provoke them. The dogs began chasing my friend, who fell down and injured his leg,” said Imran.
Imran walked up to the group and asked them to control their dogs. “They responded by calling us ISIS terrorists and said the dogs were checking to see if we were carrying any drugs.”
“The men then punched and assaulted us,” said Ammar.
Imran said residents in the area heard the commotion and came out to support them, after which the group fled.
An FIR was registered against the assailants at Nizammudin police station under sections 323 and 341 of the IPC, said a police officer. “We initiated a priority investigation to identify the accused. Two of them were arrested and later released on bail,” the officer added.
· KASHMIR STUDENTS ASSAULTED IN CHANDIGARH, SIX HURT
Jan 16: In yet another case of growing intolerance in India, a group of Kashmir students were allegedly thrashed by ‘goons’ who were in an inebriated condition in Chandigarh, a news agency here reported on Saturday.
The report said at least seven Kashmir students sustained injuries after a group of people allegedly thrashed them outside the Swami Devi Dayal College of Engineering and Technology in Golpore-Barwal.
The Kashmir students were on way to their rented accommodation in Shahzadpur when the goons thrashed them. “They were drunk and called us as Kashmir terrorists. They thrashed us ruthlessly,” a B.Tech student Amir Jameel from Vejbuer told the news agency.
He said his friends Tahmul Nisar and Majid Rafiqui from Anantnag, Sajad Ahmed from Doda, Amir Majid and Nayeem Ahmed from Varmul sustained injuries in the assault.
“The reason for their aggression against us was Pathankot attack. They ordered us to leave the city and college. They not only thrashed us but also abused us,” the Kashmir student said.
Following the incident, the students spent night at a railway station and left for their homes early morning.
“Though we identified some of the goons yet we did not register a police complaint,” they said.
Earlier when a group of Kashmir students were beaten for cheering for Pakistan cricket team in Swami Parmanand College in Mohali in 2014, they had registered a case but contrary they were charged for sedition. “This bitter experience stopped us to approach police station,” they said.
One of the student is the son of the Principal DIET Anantnag Muhammad Abdullah Shah.
He told the news wire that his son has to undergo city scan test as he has suffered multiple injuries. “My son Amir left the examination midway and returned to home. He is scared and is not ready to attend the college again,” Shah said.
· 50 KASHMIRIS ASKED TO LEAVE DELHI MIDWAY AMID UDAAN TRAINING
Jan 24: As many as 50 job aspirants from Kashmir have been asked to leave New Delhi, halfway into training under much-hyped home ministry’s UDAAN program.
50 Kashmiris asked to leave Delhi midway from UDAAN training“We have come to New Delhi under UDAAN scheme and while we were into third of the six-month training program, we have been asked to leave without assigning any reason,” the group of students told from New Delhi.
 They said that KMPG provides the training and on Saturday evening, they were asked to immediately vacate Aryan Residency Hostel, where they were staying in Greater Noida since their admission to the training programme.
“On January 23, at 9 pm, they first asked us to vacate the hostel but later, after the intervention of police and local media, we were allowed to stay till Monday 5 pm,” they said.
 They said that they have also been denied training certificate as well as stipend for three months.
“We asked them to issue at least certificate for three months but they denied,” they added.
 UDAAN is a much-hyped Rs 1,000-crore project aimed at providing employment opportunities to Kashmiri youth and it was launched in the aftermath of 2010 agitation, which led to the killing of over 120 persons, mainly youth, at the hands of police and Indian forces.
 Four years into the project, many youth dropped out due to low salaries offered to them by the corporate.
 The project is aimed to recruit the youth in the corporate sector in a bid to “bring them into mainstream”, a euphemism for weaning them away from anti-India sentiment.
 The MHA bears the share of the Rs 1,000-crore project, which intends to create 40,000 jobs in the corporate sector by the end of 2016.
 Over three dozen corporate, including Tata Motors, Wipro, Yes Bank, HCL, NTPC, BHEL, ONGC, TCS, Bajaj, SREI and Canara Bank are associated with the scheme.

3 MONTHS ON, BIHAR POLICE DELAY RELEASE OF KASHMIRI COUPLE

Jan 11: A Kupwara man and his ailing wife are facing agony and pain for the past three months for making an attempt to return to their native place from Pakistan administered Kashmir (Pak) via Nepal. 
Couple was arrested and detained by Bihar police when they returned from PaK and entered into Bihar. 
Muhammad Aslam, nephew of the detained man Pir Rehmutlllah, who is putting up in rented accommodation from past three months, while talking to media over phone from Bihar said, "Police are making the couple suffer for no fault of theirs. They have been detained them in separate cells and both of them are being treated like hardcore criminals.
 Police are feeding them substandard food which contains stones and glass pieces." 
"My aunt, Husam is a heart patient and has been constantly complaining about heartache, suffocation, hypertension and acute stress in the jail. Her health is deteriorating day by day" Aslam added.
"I have left no stone unturned during the past three months to get them released. I even met some ministers and politicians and pleaded before them to get my ailing aunt and uncle released. I even hired a lawyer for them in Bihar, but Bihar Police does not want to see them free and are prolonging their detention on different pretexts," he added.
"I am fed up of the tactics adopted by Bihar police. Today, Bihar Police delayed their release on the fourth consecutive hearing as it (Police) didn't produce the verification report submitted by Kupwara Police before the court of SDJM Rakhsol Motihar. Court has decided to hear the case tomorrow on Jan 12 again," he said.
Pertinently, verification of CIK Kashmir had reached Motihar police station on November 7, 2015. "Bihar police have already acknowledged that couple is not involved in any militant activity still they are not releasing them," Aslam said.
Pertinently, Pir Rehmatullah Shah, 40, son of Bahaudin of Guzryal Kupwara was detained by Bihar Police along with his 38 year old wife Hassam near Indo-Nepal border on October 17, last year. Both of them have been lodged at Motihar police station.
"Mother of Rehmatullah, who was a heart patient, passed away recently at Guzryal Kupwara without seeing the face of her son for last time," Aslam said, "My uncle had crossed over from Nepal to fulfill the last wish of his mother but he ended up in a jail." 
Bihar police have filed a case against the couple vide FIR No-249/15 under sections 420, 120-B,32, 14 passport violations act, and 14 adavasis violations act and had claimed that the couple are citizens of Pakistan as Rs 3000 Pakistani currency was recovered from their possession along with some watches and clothes when they were arrested.
The relatives of Rehmatullah said that he had crossed over to PaK in 1992 when he was studying in 8th class.
"Rehmatullah was 16 years old and student of Middle School Hiri when he crossed over to PaK along with some other colleagues in 1992. He was traced by his maternal uncle Pir Abdul Rashid Masoodi who took him to his home at Muzafarabad. Masoodi adjusted Rehmatullah at his grocery store as a salesman, where he worked for 23 years and married a Kashmiri girl Wasum daughter of Haji Abdul Hameed Kakroo of Hatyan Bala Muzafarabad and finally decided to return to Kashmir via Nepal," they said.
"We are concerned about the safety of Rehmatullah and his wife. We request Director General Police and other top police officers of JK to intervene and get the couple released," the relatives said.

LAND MAFIA VANDALISES JOURNALIST’S APPLE ORCHARD IN BANDIPORA 

As already in June 2015 issue The Informative Missive had detailed the colossal timber vandalization and smuggling of it by Ikhawnis (private brigade patronized by state) in district Bandipora since 90s. A disturbing report that appeared in local English daily Kashmir Reader – re-confirms the timber smuggling is still a phenomenon. 
Herein below we are reproducing the complete news item.   
Jan 23: The land mafia is being accused of vandalizing the apple orchard of a journalist at Chakrishipora, Bandipora on Friday night. The four accused persons, Ghulam Nabi Wani, Abdul Rashid Wani, Ghulam Mohammed Lone and Gani Lone, reportedly cut down trees in an orchard, belonging to Azim Jan, spread over six kanals.  But the police are now being accused of hushing up the case due to political pressure as the four are reportedly politically backed by the area’s acting MLA, Usman Majeed.
 The four, all locals and said to be cousins, were seen by a local truck driver who was coming from Srinagar at around 9:30 pm on Friday. According to the driver, he saw the accused carrying axes, running towards Azim’s orchard. Azim claimed that after he lodged a report with the police, the investigating officer, Mohammad Aahsan, made it out to be a mere case of theft and the accused were freed after an hour as the police already had kept bail ready for them.
 The accused, said Azim, had illegally encroached on state land months ago. After Azim filed a report on that in a local newspaper an FIR was filed against the four, but they got away in that case as well. Now, said Azim, the vandalising of his orchard was a ‘revenge attack by these politically backed goons’.
Speaking to Kashmir Reader, Tehsildar Bandipora Mir Murtaza said the “Damage is huge and the orchard has been completely vandalised. I have made a full report and forwarded it to the police for further investigation”. Reports said that around 100 trees had been chopped down by the attackers.
 SSP Shabir Chaudary, on his part, said action would be taken in the case and that he would discuss the issue with the concerned SHO, Ghazanfar.

ARMY CONDUCTS FRESH SEARCH OPERATION IN BANDIPORA; RESIDENTS ALLEGE HARASSMENT

Jan 09: Following yet another search operation launched on January 9, Saturday, morning, the residents of this north Kashmir district said the army “is harassing them to create fear psychosis”.  
Early Saturday morning, the army cordoned off the Village after a few gunshots were heard on late Friday evening, police said.
“Search operation was conducted to ensure militant free area,” a senior police official said.
The residents who spoke to media said they were being harassed through frequent search operations.
“In the name of search operations, army is harassing us. They barged into our houses, scattered our belongings, and threatened us,” they said.
“Since army is not succeeding in its mission, its soldiers are harassing us out of frustration.”
A local, Nadeem Aejaz (name changed) said: “We have been complaining about the armies’ high-handedness and continuous harassment for the past few months to the administration, but to no use.”
According to the residents, the army has set up checkpoints at several places, using them to “frisk and humiliate” the people.
“They make us to turn lights off or only drive with indicators on for about half a mile during late hours. Checking identity cards and frisking is now a routine,” a resident said, wishing anonymity.
Srinagar-based army spokesman Lt Col N N Joshi, however, termed the complaints as baseless.
“The army doesn’t harass locals. These are baseless allegations,” he told media.

KASHMIRI PRISONERS IN TIHAR DENIED BASIC FACILITIES, DISCRIMINATED AGAINST: BAR REPORT

Jan 14: Kashmir prisoners in New Delhi’s Tihar jail are deprived of all facilities and are denied the right to a speedy trial, the Kashmir High Court Bar Association said in its report on Wednesday.  In its report, released following a visit by a 5-member team to Tihar jail on January 11, the lawyers’ body said the Kashmiri prisoners are also subjected to discrimination.  
The team comprised KHCBA President Mian Abdul Qayoom, Mohammad Ashraf Bhat, Arshad Andrabi, Mohammad Shafi Reshi and Nasir Qadri.  
“The condition of the Kashmiri prisoners lodged in different jails of Tihar is very bad as they have been deprived of all the facilities by the jail authorities,” read the report. “There is no TV in wards where they have been kept and even the facility of radio or newspapers is not available to them, though the facility is available to other prisoners lodged in the same jail.” 
The prisoners, KHCBA said, had the facility of a canteen but it has also been taken away from them. “They are taken to the courts but their cases are adjourned for months altogether. In the NIA court, proceedings are to be conducted on a daily basis but the Kashmiri prisoners are denied the right by the courts without any rhyme or reason.”
 Inside the jail, the lawyers’ body said, they are subjected to discrimination. “While as all other prisoners are free to talk to their families seven times a week, Kashmiri prisoners are allowed to do so only twice a week and that too for 5 minutes only and are made to pay a heavy amount for such phone calls,” the Bar said and announced that it would take up the matter of these prisoners before the High Court to ensure these prisoners get a fair deal at the hands of the Tihar authorities.
The team visited the jail in pursuance to a direction by the J&K High Court on 28 December last year to visit Tihar and interact with the detainees and undertrial prisoners and convicts belonging to J&K, so as to provide necessary legal aid and assistance to them. 
“However, when the order was served by the Bar team on the Director General Prisons Delhi, he endorsed the same to the Law Officer of the Prisons Department who made the Bar team wait in his office for about three hours and then allowed them to meet only 5 undertrail prisoners of Kashmir lodged in jail no. 1, 3, 4, 8 and 9. Though the court order in unambiguous terms provided for the meeting of bar members with all the detainees/undertrial prisoners, convicts whose number is roughly 30, the jail authorities allowed the team to meet only 5 undertrial prisoners on the ground that they have instructions not to allow any Kashmir lawyer to meet any undertrial prisoner, convict or detainee of the state,” the Bar said.
The report said the Bar team was first allowed to meet Rafiq Ahmad Shah and Ghulam Mohammad Bhat who along with seven other Kashmiri prisoners are lodged in jail no. 8 and 9. “After meeting the aforesaid two persons, the bar team requested the Superintendent of the jail to allow them to meet other 7 prisoners of Kashmir as well but he refused to give them any such permission.”
The two prisoners told the Bar team that all the Kashmiri prisoners have been kept in high security wards and they have no facility of radio or newspaper available to them, the report reads. 
They said that even the canteen facility which was earlier available to them has been taken away by the jail authorities and that the Judges are fixing their cases after every two months on the grounds that they have lot of other work to do, the reported quoted them as saying. 
They also stated that in cases where final arguments have been heard, prosecution has been allowed to lead evidence to prolong the agony of the prisoners, the report reads. “They stated that they have filed bail applications before the trial courts but no orders have been passed on those applications and even their request for release on furlough and parole had been rejected.”
According to the Bar, similar ordeals were narrated by the prisoners including Tariq Ahmad Dar (jail no. 3), Muzaffar Ahmad Dar (jail no. 4) and Mohammad Shafi Shah (jail no. 1).

POLICE DETAIN STUDENT FOR NOT HAVING I-CARD

Jan 16: A Final year student from Sopore missed his examination paper after he was allegedly detained by police for not having an identity card with him.
Visibly distressed student Jibran Nazir Dar from Model Town Sopore who was released from police station Baramulla only after his examination paper 'Media Laws and Ethics' was over on Saturday told CNS that he was on way to Government Degree College for Boys Baramulla when a Police naka party stopped him outside the College. "A police officer demanded Identity card from me. I was not having the same and instead displayed my online Roll number (55025) slip.
 He didn't listen to me and despite informing him that I am supposed to reach my examination centre vide number 178, he bundled me into the police vehicle and detained me at police station Baramulla," Jibran Nazir said.
"Police officer arrested me at 10:45 and released me at 3 only when the examination paper was over. When my fellow students reached police station and told the officer that he has ruined my career and they would be protest against his illegal act, the police officer before releasing me registered a written complaint against me under section 109," he said.
Additional Superintendent of Police Baramulla Manzoor Ahmed while terming the incident unfortunate said that he talked to the police officer who claimed that the student was not having any document with him and furthermore he misbehaved with the policemen.
Pertinently, the police complaint, a photocopy of which lies with CNS reads: "DySP Operations noted the suspicious movement of Jibran Nazir Dar who tried to flee from the spot after coming across a police party." CNS 
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POLICE-ARMY CONFLICT 
ARMY ‘THREATENS’ POLICE’S COUNTER INTELLIGENCE TEAM IN MENDHAR
‘VEHICLE SEIZED, COPS ASKED TO SHOW ID CARDS’

Tension among police and army mounted along the Line of Control (LoC), after a Counter Intelligence (CI) team of police was Friday allegedly threatened by Rashtriya Rifles (RR) in Balakote sector.
In-charge police post Balakote, Kapil Manhas said the police intelligence team was stopped by the army and they were asked to show their identity cards. “Police got the seized vehicle released from army,” he said.
Rising Kashmir quoting its Sources reported that SI Bagdad Hussain Shah of Counter Intelligence was leading his team in forward area of Targundi and Drati areas, as part of routine duty.
As the CI team proceeded towards other areas along the LoC, sources said they were intercepted by the troops of 49 RR who refused to allow their entry and threatened that “they would shoot them.”
The RR troops threatened that if they were again sighted in the area they have orders to shoot them, sources quoting the complaint of CI police team told media.
“The CI team was on routine job when they were not allowed to work by RR (49 Army Unit). They asked their names one by one and then demanded identity cards from them,” sources added.
They alleged that Army has given threat to their lives and also seized their vehicles. “A police team from police post Balakote was informed about the incident by the CI team following which they visited the spot and got the police vehicle released from the custody of RR,” sources said.
They said the CI team has moved a complaint against army with the request of registration of FIR against them (the Army).

ARMY DESTROYS OVER 460 ANTI-TANK MINES, MORTARS IN RAJOURI

Jan 30: The army has destroyed over 460 anti-tank mines and motor bombs laid by it during operations in the past in a farmland in Nowshera sector of Jammu and Kashmnir’s Rajouri district and the area has been handed over to the land owners, a defence spokesman said.
“A total of 464 anti-tank mines and four unexploded mortar bombs were recovered and destroyed by the formation engineers and Lam battalion from the farmland that was demined in Sariyah village in the Nowshera sector of Rajouri district last year”, Jammu-based defence spokesman, Lt Col Manish Mehta said.
He said that it was a herculean task undertaken by the army to provide succour to the farmers of the area whose farmland was taken by the forces to lay mines in the past.
“The demining task was relentlessly pursued for three months and after making sure that it was completely free of mines, the possession of the land was handed over to the villagers last year,” he said.
He said the army’s effort was appreciated by the village elders and the entire community, saying it was the last bastion of hope for people in remote areas.

SUICIDES
· 
· CRPF MAN ENDS LIFE
Jan 06: A paramilitary trooper ended his life by slitting his throat with a knife at Radar station in central Kashmir’s Budgam district. 
	The deceased has been identified as constable Ranveer Singh posted with 181 BN.  

OFFICIALLY STATED
· 
· HONORARIUM FOR SPOS IN JK DOUBLED TO RS 6,000
New Delhi JAN 1: The honorarium for Special Police Officers (SPOs) of Jammu and Kashmir, who have been helping security forces to tackle militancy, has been doubled to Rs 6,000 per month.
The government of India cleared the proposal of the state government which was submitted in early 2012 by the then Omar Abdullah government.
"The Ministry of Home Affairs (MHA) has enhanced the honorarium of Special Police Officers (SPOs) of Jammu and Kashmir upto Rs 6,000 per month from Rs 3,000 per month. The enhancement of honorarium will come into effect from today," an official statement said.
	The state has 25,827 SPOs against the sanctioned strength of 30,000.
The honorarium is given by the state government and reimbursed by the government of India under the Security Related Expenditure (SRE) scheme.
The last enhancement was done in 2006. It is expected that this will boost the morale of the SPOs who play a vital role in combating militancy in the state.
	Giving approval to the proposal, Home Minister Rajnath Singh has also constituted a committee comprising representatives of Home Ministry and state government for assessing the performance, utility and efficacy of the SPOs. When the proposal for enhancement of honorarium was mooted in 2012, it was in-principle agreed by the then Home Minister P Chidambaram.
· IN 2015, 41 FORCES PERSONNEL, 113 MILITANTS KILLED IN J&K: GOVT
Jan 17: Casualties suffered by forces personnel in Jammu and Kashmir have been on the decline in the past three years with 41 personnel killed during counter-insurgency operations in 2015.
Though the state witnessed growing radicalisation of the youth during the period, particularly after the emergence of ISIS, the forces were ‘effective’ in countering militants.
The number of forces personnel killed dropped from 51 in 2014 to 41 in 2015, whereas the number of militants killed in counter-insurgency operations marginally rose to 113 from 110 in 2014, official data reveals.
Over the past three years, the casualties suffered by forces have been on the decline as 61 of them were killed in 2013.
The number of militants killed in forces action has seen a steady rise since 2012 when 84 militants were killed. In 2013, 100 guerrillas were killed by the forces.
· GOVERNOR SEEKS TO EXPAND NIA ROLE IN J&K, SETS OFF ROW
Jan 19: Jammu and Kashmir governor N.N. Vohra ignited a new controversy by suggesting the Ranbir Penal Code, the state’s criminal law, be brought under the NIA Act, giving the Central agency extraordinary powers to take over any terror case in the state.
In his address at the NIA’s 7th foundation day January 19, the governor said the Union home ministry should take urgent steps to ensure the NIA’s legal framework is modified to enable effective investigations in terror cases.
“The existing schedule to the NIA Act also requires to be reviewed for enlarging the list of offences... to cover those under the Ranbir Penal Code, Arms Act, NDPS Act, Explosive Substances Act, among others,” he said.
J&K, which is now under Governor’s Rule, has a special status whereby no law comes into force automatically until it is ratified by the state Assembly. Both the PDP and the National Conference are opposed to giving sweeping powers to the NIA.
The inclusion of the Ranbir Penal Code, which is used in place of the Indian Penal Code in Jammu and Kashmir, would mean that the NIA can take over any case registered under the Unlawful Activities (Prevention) Act, as well as under the Ranbir Code.
PDP leader Nayeem Akther said his party needed time to study the governor’s statement and will give its response later, while the NC spokesman said his party will not back any such move. “The governor should leave all such decisions to be taken by a popularly-elected government,” he added.

	DATE 
	ARMED FORCES
	MILITANTS
	CIVILIANS

	JAN 01
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 02
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 03
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 04
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 05
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 06
	1
	-
	-

	JAN 07
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 08
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 09
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 10
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 11
	-
	1
	-

	JAN 12
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 13
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 14
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 15
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 16
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 17
	-
	-
	1

	JAN 18
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 19
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 20
	-
	1
	1

	JAN 21
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 22
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 23
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 24
	-
	-
	-
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	-
	-
	-
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	-
	1
	-

	JAN 27
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 28
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 29
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 30
	-
	3
	-

	JAN 31
	-
	-
	-

	TOTAL 
	1
	6
	2
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CHRONOLOGY OF INCIDENT
JAN 01: Youth protested post-Friday prayers in Srinagar down town and Pulwama district against VDC militia who killed last week a month and her son in Rajouri district. 
JAN 02: No incident of violence reported.
JAN 03: Demonstrations were held against at Shia dominated areas in Kashmir valley against the execution of four Shia clerics by the Saudi Arabian government. 
JAN 04: In response to the protests triggered after the execution of Shia cleric by Saudi government, authorities imposed restrictions in parts of valley dominated by Shia community. While the situation remained tense in Pulwama district area for fifth consecutive day over the killing of militants in an encounter with armed forces.  The police has arrested five more youths from Gasu village in Pulwama during night raids.  
JAN 05: The restrictions continued in parts of Srinagar to curb what police claimed the immanent protests against the execution of Shia cleric by Saudi government. 
JAN 06: A grenade was hurled towards a CRPF installation of 40 BN at Mominabad, Anantnag; however, no causality was caused. While a paramilitary trooper ended his life by slitting his throat with a knife at Radar station in central Kashmir’s Budgam district. The deceased has been identified as constable Ranveer Singh posted with 181 BN.  
JAN 07: Police allegedly ransacked several shops at Jamia Masjid, Srinagar, beat up shopkeepers and hurled teargas shells into the shops during a protest in the area. While the Pulwama area remained shut over the demand, police rejected, of erecting a monument in memory of the slain militants in the area.
JAN 08: No incident of violence reported.
JAN 09: Clashes between state forces and youth took place in Maisuma area of Srinagar district, when youth took out a rally to protest the arrest of a boy, police claimed involved in many cases.
JAN 10: Two army porters were injured in a land mine blast near LOC in Keran sector of north Kashmir’s Kupwara district. The injured were identified as Parvez Ahmad Mir and Abdul Majeed Mir. Foot of Parvez Ahmad was blown up while Majeed got seriously injured. 
JAN 11: A militant was killed in an encounter with security forces in Zakura area of Srinagar. The joint operation was carried out by Jammu and Kashmir Police along with the CRPF. The militant, identified as Sajad Ahmad Bhat, is believed to be associated with Lashkar-e-Taiba. 
JAN 12: Protests and clashes erupted in Zewan area of Srinagar outskirts following the killing of LeT militant in a gunfight. During clashes several youths were injured. A large number of people participated in the funeral procession of the killed militant. A shutdown was observed in the area and shops, other business establishments, government and semi government offices remained closed.
JAN 13: No incident of violence reported. 
JAN 14: No incident of violence reported.
JAN 15: No incident of violence reported.
JAN 16: No incident of violence reported.
JAN 17: The body of a 55-year-old man, Ghulam Mohammad Hajam, who has been missing since January 3, was found at Katipora, Awantipora, his family said.
JAN 18: No incident of violence reported.
JAN 19: No incident of violence reported.
JAN 20: A civilian, Parvez Ahmad, was killed after government forces opened fire on people protesting against the killing of a militant Shariq Ahmad Bhat during an encounter with forces in Naina area of southern Pulwama district. Two other civilians injured by state forces bullets were identified as Shabir Ahmad Bhat and Junaid Ahmad Dar, who had bullet injuries on their arms were referred to Bone and Joint hospital Srinagar for advanced treatment.
JAN 21: South Kashmir observed shutdown to protest against the killing of a youth in police firing at Naina Batapora village in Pulwama district on January 20. Meanwhile, to commemorate the 26 anniversary of Gaw Kadal Massacre, Lal Chowk, Maisuma and its adjoining areas observed a shut down.
JAN 22: Old Srinagar on witnessed clashes between youths and protests. Police and paramilitary CRPF men fired tear smoke canisters at them, triggering clashes. 
JAN 23: No incident of violence reported. 
JAN 24: No incident of violence reported. 
JAN 25: No incident of violence reported. 
JAN 26: One LET militant was killed in an encounter with state forces in Kokernag area of South Kashmir. The slain militant has been identified as Mushtaq Ahmad Haroo alias Adil son of Mohammad Amin of Pushwara, Anantnag.
JAN 27: No incident of violence reported.
JAN 28: No incident of violence reported.
JAN 29: No incident of violence reported.
JAN 30: Three LeT militants claimed to be killed by the army at Dardpora, Lolab in border district of Kupwara. One of the slain militants has been identified as Abu Usman alias Zaraar.  
JAN 31: No incident of violence reported. 
